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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Maithan Alloys Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion .

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Maithan Alloys Limited (the “Company™),
which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of
Cash Flows for the vear then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone

Financial Statements™).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standatone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Jndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™)
and other accounting principles generally accepted in [ndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March
2021, and the profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that

date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw your attention to Note 50 to the standalone financial statement which explains the uncertainties and the
management’s assessment of the financial impact due to the lock-downs and other restrictions and conditions related
to the COVID-19 pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent period is
highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
standatone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
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standalone financial statements as a whole, and in for
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to

communicated in our report:

ming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

be the key audit matters to be

S. No.

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

Revenue Recognition
(Refer note 3(1} the significant accounting policies
of Standalone Financial Statements).

Revenue is recognized when the control of the
underlying products has been transferred to
customer along with the satisfaction of the
Company’s performance obligation under a
contract with customer.

There is a significant risk of misstatement due to
visk related to inappropriate recognition of the
revenue and hence we considered the Revenue as a
key audit matter given its relative size in the
financial statements and significant judgment
involved in the consideration of factors in
determination of selling prices such as fluctuation
of raw materials prices in the market.

Our audit procedures, considering the significant
risk of misstatement related to revenue recognition,
included amongst other:

« Obtaining an understanding and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of the Company’s key internal controls over the
revenue recognition process.

« Examination of significant contracts entered into
close to year end to ensure revenue recognition is
made in correct period.

. Testing a sample of contracts from various
revenue streams by agreeing information back to
contracts and proof of delivery as appropriate and
ensure revenue recognition policy is in accordance
with principles of Ind AS 115.

Our testing as described above showed that revenue
has been recorded in accordance with the terms of
underlying contracts and accounting policy in this
area.

Inventories

The carrying value of inventory as at 31 March
2021 is Rs. 348{5 }crores. The inventory is valued
at the lower of cost and net realizable value. We
considered the value of inventory as a key audit
matter given the relative size of ifs balance in the
financial statements and significant judgment
involved in comparison of net realizable value with
cost to arrive at valuation of inventory.

Refer Note No. 9 to the standalone financial
statements.

o

Principal Audit Procedures

- We understood and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of controls as established
by the management in determination of net
realizable value of inventory.

- Assessing the appropriateness of Company’s
accounting policy for valuation of stock-in- trade
and compliance of the policy with the requirements
of the prevailing Indian accounting standards

. We considered various factors including the
actual selling price prevailing around and
subsequent to the year-end.

. Compared the cost of the finished goods with the
estimated net realizable value and checked if the
finished goods were recorded at net realizable
value where the cost was higher than the net
realizable value.

“_ Further, for the purpose of determination of
. physical quantity of the inventory as at the year

| end, physical verification was done by the

' management of the Company and we have relied

upon their report.
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- Based on the above procedures performed, the
management’s determination of the net realizable
value of the inventory as at the year end and
comparison with cost for valuation of inventory is
considered to be reasonable.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs, profit/loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directot’s are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high jevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
infiuence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

’ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
hased on the audit evidence obtained;, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Cotnpany to
cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2.
(a)

As required by ‘the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016°, issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) 1n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears

{c)

from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified

(e)

®

(@

under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2021 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given tous:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2021 on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 45 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Maithan Alloys Limited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Page 6 of 6

Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021.

3. With respect to the other matters (o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act..

For M Choudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302186E

D Cloudhury

Partner

Membership No. 052066

UDIN: 21052066AAAABT3780

Place: Kolkata
Date: 05 May 2021
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i. (a2)The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management at reasonable intervals
andno material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinationof the
records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

i, The physical verification of inventory has begn conducted at reasonable intzrvals by the Management and no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. ‘

ii.  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, limited Hability partnership firm,
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 139 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions
of Clanse 3(iiD)[(a), (b) and (c)] of the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv. The Company has neither granted any loan nor provided any guarantee or security hence the provisions of
Section 185 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us with respect to the investments made, the Company has complied with the provisions
of Section 186 of the Act.

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the rules framed there under.Therefore, the provision of clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable on the
Company.

vi. Pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government of India, the Company is required to maintain Cost
Records as specified under Sec 148(1) of the act in respect of its products. We have broadly reviewed the
same, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed exemination of the records with a view to determine
whether they arc accurate or complete.

vii.  (a) The Company isregular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income tax,Goods and Service tax, Customs Duty,cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. As per the records of the Company examined by us, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues
were outstanding as at 3| March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date of becoming payable.

(b) There are no dues with respect to income tax, GST, customs duty and other material statutory dues except
Service tax, Excise duty, cess, etc., which have not been depositedon account of dispute. The dues
outstanding as at 31st March, 2021 with respect (0 service tax, excise duty and cess on account of any
dispute, are as follows:

Period to Forum where
Name of the statute Nature of dues Amount which the the dispute is
(Rs. In crores) amount .
pending
relates
The Central Excise Act, | Excise Duty & CESTAT,
1944 Service Tax 0.10 | 2006-07 Kolkata
The Central Excise Act, | Excise Duty & CESTAT,
1944 Service Tax 0.12 | 2008-09 Kolkata
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vili,

xi.

xii.

%iil.

Xiv.

. . Commissioner
The Central Excise Act, Excise Duty &
1944 Service Tax 0.05 | 2008-09 (Appeal),
Kolkata
The Central Excise Act, | Excise Duty & CESTAT,
1944 Service Tax 0.43 | 2009-10 Kolkata
The Central Excise Act, | Excise Duty & CESTAT,
1944 Service Tax 0.32 | 2013-14 Kolkata
The Central Excise Act, | Excise Duty & CESTAT,
1944 Service Tax 0.60 | 2014-13 Kolkata
The Central Excise Act, | Excise Duty & CESTAT,
1944 Service Tax 0.51 | 2016-17 Kolkata
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 0.12 | 2017-18 Commissioner
{Appeal), Siliguri
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 0.06 | 2017-18 Commissioner
{Appeal), Siliguri
Finance Act, 1994 Service Tax 0.01 | 201718 Commissioner
(Appeal), Siliguri
. . Assistant
The Central Excise Act, Exc1_se Duty & 0.09 | 2017-18 Commissioner,
1944 Service Tax
Asansol
The Central Excise Act, Exqse Duty & 034 | 2013-14 Commtssnor'l(?r _
1944 Service Tax (Appeal), Siliguri
The Central Excise Act, | Excise Duty & 2016-17 Addl.
Cyen . 0.89 | &upto Commissioner,
1944 Service Tax \
June’17 Bolpur
. . g Assistant
The Central Excise Act, Exm_se Duty & 0.05 1 2019-20 Commissioner,
1944 Service Tax
Asansol

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution or banks as
at the balance sheet date. The Company has neither issued any debentures ner has taken any loans or
borrowings from the Government as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer/further public offer (including debt
instruments)/term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

We have neither come across anyinstance of anyfrauds on or by the Company, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The managerial remuneration has been paid/provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated
by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has citered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions of section
177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party trdansactions have been disclosed in the standalone
financial staterentsas required by the applicabie accounting standards.

No money was raised through preferentiat allotment/private placements of shares/fully/partly convertible
debentures during the year under review, hence, the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the said Order Is not
applicable to the Company.
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XV, The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with
them.Accordingly, clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xvi, The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934.Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xvi)of the order are not applicableto the Company.

For M Choudhury& Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302186E

D Choudhury
Pariner _
Membarship No. 052066

UDIN: 21052066 AAAABT3780

Place: Kolkata
Date: 05.05.2021
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 ofSection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(*the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controlswith reference to financial statementsof Maithan Alloys Limited (“the
Company™) as at31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of thelnd ASStandalonefinancial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financialcontrols based on the
internal concrolwith reference to financial statementscriteriaestablished by the Company considering the essential
compenents of internal control stated inthe Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued bythe Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design,implementationandm intenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operatingeffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adberence to
Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds anderrors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation ofreliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibitity is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controlswith reference to financial
statementbased an our zudit. We conducted our audit in accerdance withthe Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing specified, under saction 143(10) of the Act 15 the extent applicable to an audit ofinternal financiai controls,
bt dpplicable to an audit*af Internal Financizl Controls andbothissued by the ICAL Those Standards and the
GridanceNote require thit we comply with ethical requirements and-plan and perform the audit toobtain reasonable
assurance ahout wihether adequate internal financiat controls over financialreporting was cstablished and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in afl materialrespects.

Cur audit involves perferming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe internal financial
controls systemwith reference to financial statementsand their operating effectiveness.Our audit of internal financial
contros ove: financial reporting included obtaining anunderstanding of internal financial controlswith reference to
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness ofinternal control based ou the asscssed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’sjudgment, mcluding tae assessment of the risks of material misstarement of the financialstatements,
whether due to fraud or error.

[ ¥

Gdinion on the Company’s internal financial controls sysiemuviti reference 1o finunciai statements.

We beliave that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficizrt and appropriate to providea basis for our audit

Meaning, ¢ f Internal Financial Controls over Financia! Repertiﬁg

A company's internal financial controlwith reference to financial statementsis a process designed to
providercasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation offinancial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A compary's internal
financial controlwith reference to financial statementsincludes those policiesand procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenanbé of records that, in ;'easonabie detail,accurately cnd fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
sssets of the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary fo permit
rreparctionsf standalene finencial statements in accordunce with generally accepted accounting piinciples, and
Tetrencipis and exoenditures of the company are being made onty in accordance withauthorizations of management
and divectors of tac cempany; and (3) provide reasonabieassurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
vngeierized Foquisition, use, ordisposition of ihe company’s a3sels that could have a material effect on the

standatere nnancial slatzments,
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controlswith reference to financial statement, includingthe
possibility of collusion or improper management, override of controls, material misstatementsdue to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of theinterna! financial controlswith reference to
financial statementto future periods are subject to the risk that theinternal financial control with reference to
financial statementsmay become inadequate because of changes inconditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,an adequate internal financial controls systemwith
reference to financial statementsand such internal financial controlswith reference to financial statementswere
operating effectively as at 31 March 2021,based on the internal controlwith reference to financial statementscriteria
established by the Company consideting the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For M Choudhury& Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302186E

D Choudhury
Partner
Membership No. 052066
UDIM:2 {052066AAAABT3780

Place: Kolkata
Date:05.05.2021



MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars Notes As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
{(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4(i) 172.32 185.17
{t) Capital Work in Progress 4 - 1.10
(c) Intangible Assets Afiii) 0.46 0.54
(d) Right of Use Assets A(iv) 20,43 21.42
(e) Financial Assets
() Investments 5 27.31 26.35
(i) Other Financial Assets 6 32.53 32.53
(h  Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 6.87 6.11
{g) Other Non-Current Assets 8 0.78 0.85
Total Non-Current Assets 260.70 274.07
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 348.51 276.93
(b} Financial Assets
{i) Investmenis 10 787.82 -
(i) Trade Receivables 11 436.28 280.59
(il Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 18.26 625.06
{iv} Bank Balances (other than (iii) above) 13 6.51 11.10
(v} Loans 14 1.07 1.78
(v} Other Financial Assets 15 2.57 2.38
(c) Other Current Assets 16 43.52 50.09
Total Current Assets 1,644.54 1,247.93
Total Assets 1,906.24 1,522.00
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 17 29.11 29.11
(b) Other Equity 18 1,501.88 1,270.30
Total Equity 1,530.99 1,299.41
Liabilities
{1) Non-Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Lease Liabilities 19 3.48 357
(b) Provisions 20 2.80 2.79
() Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 21 31.51 29.48
(d} Other Non-Current Liabilities 22 0.89 0.98
Total Non-Current Liabilities 28.68 36.82
{2) Current Liabilities
(a8) Financial Liabilities
{iy Borrowings 23 4514 6.77
(i) Trade Payable 24
- Trade Payables (outstanding to micro and
small enterprises) - -
- Ttade Payables (outstanding to other than
micro and small enterprises) 183.31 75.00
(iiy Other Financial Liahilities 25 21,85 23.92
{b) Provisions 26 1.48 1.60
(c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 27 14.85 5.18
(d) Other Current Liabilities 28 68.94 73.30
Total Current Liabilities 335.57 185.77
Total Liabilities 374.25 222.59
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,905.24 1,522.00

The accompanying notes 1 to 51 are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report attached

For M. Choudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN.: 302186

D, Choudhury
Partner
Membership No.: 052066

Place: Kolkata

Date: 05 May 2021 "

e

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

;JZAMJ"’
S. C. Agarwalla

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00088384

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
resident & CFO

Subo garwalla
Whole-time D r & CEQ
DIN: 00339855

L0 e

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary



MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 (Rs. in crore)
. Year Ended 31 March| Year Ended 31 March
Particulars Notes 2021 2020
Income
Revenue from Operations 29 1,6190.78 1,830.88
Other Income 30 23.72 65.92
Total Income 1,643.50 1,896.80
Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 31 720.20 921.96
Purchases of Stock In Trade 32 123.04 135.98
Changes in Inveniories of finished goods
and work in progress 33 (2.53) 8.85
Employee Benefits Expenses 34 40.63 42.34
Power Cost 35 331.98 361.38
Finance Cost 36 1.20 3.71
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 37 16.62 15.81
Other Expenses as 110.92 127.63
Total Expenses 1,341.06 1,617.68
Profit Before Tax 202.44 279.14
Tax Expenses
{a) Current Tax 40 67.85 55.45
(b} Deferred Tax 40 1.56 1.79
Total Tax Expenses 69.41 57.24
Profit for the year {A) 233.03 221.90
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i ) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Re-measurements of the Net Defined Benefit Plans 0.50 (0.14)
- Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income 0.96 {2.02)
(i) Income tax relating to above items 40 {0.47) 0.28
B (i) Items that will be reciassified to Profit or Loss
- Effective portion of gainsf{losses) on 163
desighated portion of Hedging Instruments '
Other Comprehensive Income/{Loss) for the year (B) 0.99 (0.25)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {A+B} 234.02 221.65
Earnings Per Share (of Rs. 10/- each)
(1) Basic (in Rs.) Kie] 80.05 76.22
{2) Diluted (in Rs.) 39 80.05 76.22
The accompanying notes 1 to 51 are an integral part of the financial statements.
tn terms of our report attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For M. Choudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN.: 302186E S. C. Agarwalla Subo garwalla
Chairman & Managing Director Whole-time Di r & CEO
DIN: 00088384 DIN; 00339855
D. Choudhury L ,LO, 2 &({f/
Partner -
Membership No.: 052066 {U\&Otu«\
Sudhanshu Agarwalla Rajesh K. Shah
esident & CFO Company Secrelary

Place: Kolkata
Date: 05 May 2021
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MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Rs. In crore)

Year Ended 31 March

Year Ended 31 March

Particulars 2024 2020
A, CASH FLOW FROM COPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax 302.44 279.14
Adjusted for :

Depreciation and Amortisation 15.62 15.81
Interest Expense 1.20 3.7
Interest Income (8.44) {4.97)
Irrecoverable Balances Written Off/Back - 0.01
Gain on Investment {14.65) {46.03)
Unrealised Forex (Gain) / Loss {2.45) 913
Deferred Revenue Grant (0.09) {0.09)
Dividend Received {0.19) {13.95)
Loss / (Profit} on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.02 (0.01)

(8.98) (36.45)

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 293.46 242,69
Adjusted for :

Trade and Other Receivables {154.47) (23.07)
Inventories {71.58} (15.99}
Trade and Other Payables 107.84 {198.42)

(118.21) {237.48)

Cash Generated from Operations 175.25 5.21
Income Tax Paid 58.94 50.59
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 116.31 [45.38)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of PPE / Intangible / CWIP {0.71) {4.56}

Sale of PPE / Intangible / CWiP 0.09 0.02

Capital Work In progress

Purchase of Investments {1,026.33) (506.10)

Sale of Investments 253.16 1,572.96

Dividend Received 0.19 13.95

Interest Income Received 8.82 4.92

Investments in bank deposits 4.59 15.54

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B} {760.19) 696.73

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest Paid {1.20) {3.71)

Dividend Paid Including Tax on Dividend - (42.11)

Acquisition of interest in LLP - -

Acquisition of Shares in Subsidiary - {0.10)

Proceeds/ {Repayment) from/ of Borrowings 38.28 3.31

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (o] 37.08 (42.61)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C} (606.80) 608.73

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 625.06 16.33

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 18.26 625.06

Notes:

1 Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year consist of:

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note no. 12} 18.26 625.06

Less: Deposits held as Margin Money - -
18.26 625.06

This is the Cash Flow statement referred to in our repert of even date.
The accompanying notes 1 to 51 are an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of qur report attached

For M. Choudhury & Co.
Chartered Accountants ' 5. C.
FRM.: 302186E

i
. Choudhury
Pariner
Membership No.: 052066

Place: Kolkata
Date: 05 May 2021

Cheirman & Managing Director
DIN: 00088384

Sudhanshu Agarwalla
Prasident & CFO

For and on behalf of the Board of iree

(/.

L o

Rajesh K. Shah
Company Secretary




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Corporate Information

Maithan Alloys Limited ("the Company"} is a public company domiciled in india limited by shares,
and it’s incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India on 19 September
1985.. Its shares are listed on Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE) and the National Stock Exchange (NSE)
and are traded on Bombay Stock Exchange {BSE} under Permitted category. The Company is engaged
in the business of manufacturing and exporting of ali three bulk Ferro alloys- Ferro Manganese, Silico
Manganese and Ferro Silicon. It is also engaged in the generation and supply of Wind Power and has
a Captive Power Plant.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared In accordance with the Indian

Accounting Standards (ind AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
read with Rule 4A of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, Companies (indian
Accounting Standards),as amended, and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the

Act").

Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost and on accrual method of
accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value/
amortised cost. (Refer note 3{j) below).

Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services at the time of their acquisition.

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial
statements.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuously
evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions
and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be reasonable
under the existing circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that
occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the

reporting date.

Functional Currency and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (Rs.) which is the Company's functiona!

currency for all its operations.




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Current and Non-Current Classification
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal
operating cycle {twelve months) and other criteria set out in the schedule Ili to the Companies Act,
2013 and Ind AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

All assets and liabilities are classified as current when it is expected to be realized or settled within
the Company's normal operating cycle, i.e. twelve months. All other assets and liabilities are

classified as non- current.,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only,
Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipments

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition, installation or construction
(net of taxes and other recoverable, wherever applicable) less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any, except freehoid land which is carried at cost

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including inward freight,
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the
asset to working condition and location for its intended use. Stores and spare parts are capitalised
when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. The corresponding old spares are
decapitalised on such date with consequent impact in the statement of profit & loss.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components} of property, plant and equipment.
Likewise, expenditure towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate
component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method (SLM), except on

additions made after 1 April, 2006 to Building and Plant & Machineries of Ferro Alloys Unit at
Byrnihat and Kalyaneshwari on whlch depreciation has been provided on written down value (WDV)

method.

Depreciation is provided to aIIoca;é the costs of property, plant and equipment, net of their residual
values, over their useful life as spécified in Schedule il of the Companies Act, 2013, other than in case
of factory building and pIant'“& machinery in Visakhapatnam Unit where useful life has been
considered by the management to be of 20 years.
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MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

The assets residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed during each financial year and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. In
respect of an asset for which impairment loss is recognized, depreciation is provided on the
revised carrying amount of the assets over its remaining useful life.

Leases

The Company has applied ind AS 116 “Leases” with effect from 1% April 2019.

As a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for ali leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial
direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease lfabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value

guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

As a Lessor:

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

Capital Work in Progress

Capital work in progress comprises expenditure for acquisition and construction of assets that are
not yet ready for their intended use. Costs, net of income, associated with the commissioning of the
asset are capitalized until the period of commissioning has been completed and the asset is ready for
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MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

its intended use. At the point when the asset is capable of operating in the manner intended by the
management, the cost of construction is transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment. Such items are classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for their intended use. Advances given towards
acquisition/construction of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date
are disclosed as Capital Advances under “Other non-current assets”.

Intangible Assets and Amortization

Intangible assets acquired separately are, on initial recognition, measured at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or infinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortization period and the amortization method for intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed during each reporting period.

Intangible assets with infinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of infinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the infinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
useful life from infinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

A Summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is, as follows:

Intangible assets Amortization Method Used
Mining rights Over the period of respective mining agreement
Software Amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful life.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at each financial year end, if the
expected useful life of the asset is different from previous estimates; the change is accounted for
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate,

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be committed to the sale which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of

classification.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are not depreciated and are
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to seil. Such assets and disposal
groups are presented separately on the face of the Balance Sheet.




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

impairment of Non- Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date to determine if there is any indication of impairment,
based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, then an impairment review Is
undertaken and an impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the statement of profit and loss
wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use. . In case,
where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual non-financial asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount for the smallest cash generating unit to which the non-
financial asset belongs.

Fair value less costs of disposal is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly
transaction between market participants and does not reflect the effect of factors that may be
specific to the entity and not applicable to entities in general. Value in use is determined as the
present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset in its present form and its eventual disposal.

Impairment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating unit (CGU). A cash-
generating unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets.

A cash generating unit is treated as impaired when the carrying amount of the assets or cash
generating unit exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss in the year in which asset or cash generating unit is identified as impaired.

Impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period(s) is reversed when there is an indication that
the impairment losses recognised no longer exist or have decreased. However, the carrying value
after reversal is not increased beyond the carrying value that would have prevailed by charging usual
depreciation, if there was no impairment. Post impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised
carrying value of the impaired asset over its remaining useful life.

Government Grants and Subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the Government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that
the grant/subsidy will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions attached to
them. When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis
in profit or loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which they are
intended to compensate, When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as deferred income and
released to income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related assets and
presented within other income.

In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognized is ultimately not received, it is treated as a
change in estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.
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MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates that
approximates the rate as at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies outstanding at the end of the reporting period are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the reporting date. Non-monetary items are
translated using the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date, subsequently measured at
historical cost and not retranslated at period end.

All exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
except any exchange differences on monetary items designated as an effective hedging instrument
which are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through the statement of profit and loss) are added or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through the
statement of profit and loss are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

(i) Financial Assets

The Company’s financial assets comprise:

a. Current financial assets mainly consist of trade receivables, investments in liquid mutual funds,
cash and bank balances, fixed deposits with banks and financial institutions and other current
receivables,

b. Non-current financial assets mainly consist of financial investments in equity, bond and fixed
deposits, non-current receivables from related party and employees and non-current deposits.

» Recognition And Initial Measurement
The Company recognises a financial asset when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the

acquisition of the financial asset,

» Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
¢  Financial assets at Amortized Cost;
Debt Instruments at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI);
Debt Instruments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL); and
Equity Instruments measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income {FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period

the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
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MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

o Financial assets at Amortized Cost: A debt instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both
the following conditions are met;
e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows; and
* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPP1} on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost category is the most relevant to the Company. It comprises of
current financial assets such as trade receivables, cash and bank balances, fixed deposits with
bank and financial institutions, other current receivables and non-current financial assets such as
financial investments — fixed deposits and non-current receivables. After initial measurement,
such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. The EIR amortisation is included in other income in the statement of profit
and loss. The losses arising from impairment, if any are recognised in the statement of profit and

loss.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

O Debt Instruments at FVOCI: A debt instrument is measured at the FVOCI if both of the following
conditions are met:
¢ The objective of the business model! is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets; and
* The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL.

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction
costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognized in Other Comprehensive Income. However, the interest income,
losses & reversals, and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. Interest calculated using the EIR (Effective Rate Interest) method is recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss as investment income.

o Debt Instruments and Equity Instruments at FVTPL: FVTPL is a residual category for debt
instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at FVTPL, if such designation reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company
has not designated any debt instrument at FVTPL.

Debt mstruments mcIuded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with any gains
and Iosses ansmg Qn re measurement are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments” are measured at FVTPL
with all changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity Instruments measured at FVOCI: For all equity instruments other than held for trading,
the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in Other Comprehensive Income
subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

in case the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOC), then all fair value
changes on the instrument are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. There is ho
reclassification of the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income to profit or loss, even on sale
of investment. Dividends on investments are credited to profit or loss.

The Company has designated its investments in equity instruments as FYTOCI category.

O Investments in subsidiaries and associates

A. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity
when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted at cost less impairment, if any.

8. Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence. Significant

influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies. This is generally the case where
the Company holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted at cost less impairment, if any.

» Derecognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trade date only when the contractual rights to the
cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

» Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at the end of the reporting period whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS — 109 requires expected credit losses {ECL) to be measured
through a loss allowance. The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment
loss allowance on trade receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind-AS 115
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, if they do not contain a significant financing component.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from mltlal recogn:tlon

r“d f\rcox‘



MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If
credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If in a subsequent period,
credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based
on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls)
discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance {or reversal) recognised during the
period is recognised as income / expense in the statement of profit and loss. For financiai assets
measured as at amortised cost, ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount.
Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from
the gross carrying amount.

(ii) Financial Liabilities

» Recognition And Initial Measurement
The Company recognises a financial liability in its balance sheet when it becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company'’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

»  Subsequent Measurement
Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost or FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as FVTPLIf it is classified as held for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and
net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR (Effective Rate Interest) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR (Effective Rate Interest}
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included
as finance costs in profit or loss.

» Derecognition
A financial ii@iﬁ;y is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled

or expiresﬁfl\\ffl"é:r’i}?an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
S &
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substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

> Offsetting Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Balance Sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultanecusly. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

(iii) Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting

The Company enters into forward contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in interest rates and
exchange rates. The Company does not hold derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when they arise,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges which is recognized in Other comprehensive
Income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging reserve. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is

negative.

Amounts previously recognised in Other comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity relating
to effective portion as described above are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss. However, when the hedged forecast transaction
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, such gains and losses are
transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial

asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or
exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is
recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued after providing for obsolescence, as follows:

Raw materials, stores and spare parts, fuel and packing material:

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes purchase price, other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present focation and condition, and taxes for which credit is not available.
However, materials and other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down
below/cost if: tbe fm:shed products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or
above~cpst Costi |s determmed on weighted average basis.




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Work-in-progress, finished goods and stock in trade:

Lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost
of Stock-in-trade includes cost of purchase and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories in the
present location and condition, Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are identified at the time of physical verification
and where necessary, provision is made for such inventories.

Revenue Recognition

(i} Revenue from Operation
Revenue is recognized on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services
to a customer for an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange of those goods or services.

a) Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when all significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods are transferred to the customer, and when there is no longer any unfulfilled obligation
which generally coincides with delivery. Revenue from sale of power is recognised when
delivered and measured based on rates as per bilateral contractual agreements with buyers and
at rate arrived at based on the principles laid down under the relevant Tariff Regulations as
notified by the regulatory bodies, as applicable. The customer obtains control of the goods when
the significant risks and reward of products sold are transferred according to the specific delivery
term that has been agreed with the customer.

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and
discounts to customers. Revenue from the sale of goods includes duties which the Company
pays as a principal but excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable a significant reversal will not occur,

b) Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in the periods in which the services are
rendered and there is no unfulfiled obligation.,

c} Export entitlements in the form of Duty Drawback and MEIS/RODTEP scheme are recognized in
the Statement of Profit and Loss Account when right to receive credit as per the terms of the
scheme is established in respect of exports made and when there is no significant uncertainty
regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

(ii} Other Income
a} Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method.For all financial

instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
mterest ratp jgi@ which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments

\O\
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or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset.

b) Dividend Income is recognised only when the right to receive payment is established, provided
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Company,
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

m. Employee Benefits

o) Short-Term Benefits

Short term employee benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized as an expense at the
undiscounted amount in the statement of profit and loss of the year in which the related service is
rendered.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service, are treated as short
term employee benefits. The Company measure the expected cost of such absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlements that has accumulated

at the reporting date.

b) Defined Contribution Plans

Employee benefits in the form of contribution to Superannuation Fund, Provident Fund managed
by Government Authorities, Employee State Insurance Corporation and Labour Welfare Fund are
considered as defined contribution plans and the same are charged to the statement of profit and
loss for the year in which the employee renders the related services.

¢) Defined Benefit Plans
The Company’s gratuity fund scheme and post-employment benefits scheme are considered as
defined benefit plans. The Company's liability is determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit method as at the balance sheet date.
Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit and ioss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of plan amendment or curtailment, and
* The date that the company recognizes related restructuring costs
The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. The Company recognizes the following changes in
the statement of profit and loss:
® Service costs comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
* Netinterest expense or income
Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of asset ceiling {if any), and
the return on the plan assets (excluding net interest), are recognized immediately in the balance
sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in
subsequent periods.
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Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax and includes any

adjustments related to past periods in current and/or deferred tax adjustments that may become
necessary due to certain developments or reviews during the relevant period. Tax is recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
Equity or Other Comprehensive Income.

a) Current Tax
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and the tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are

enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current tax relating to the items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net

basis.

b) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized on all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and

liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Company’s financial statements except when the
deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither the accounting nor taxable
profits or loss at the time of transaction. Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance
Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax fosses to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary difference, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each
reporting date and is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.
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Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there
is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset
is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay normat income tax during the specified period.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when the same
relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive tncome or directly in Equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax relating to such items are aiso recognised in Other
Comprehensive fncome or directly in Equity respectively.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically
to finance a project are invested temporarily and the money generated from such current
investments is deducted from the total borrowing cost to be capitalised. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss during the extended periods when the active
development on the qualifying assets is interrupted. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, cash at banks, demand deposits from banks and
short-term, highly fiquid instruments.

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent includes
cash on hand, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash, cash at bank and bank overdraft which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current

liabilities in the Balance Sheet.

Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the

effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows are segregated into operating, investing and financing activities.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a
result of a past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle such
an obligation and the amount can be estimated reliably. If the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present
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Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made. Contingent Liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements
when the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is more.

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of

economic benefits is probable.

Earnings per share
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or ioss attributable to equity shareholders of the

Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit after tax as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the
~ dilutive potential equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted
average number of equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares ,

Dividends
Dividends paid are recognised in the period in which the interim dividends are approved by the
Board of Directors, or in respect of the final dividend when approved by shareholders and is

recognised directly in equity.

Segment Reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODMY).The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in
conformity with the accounting policies adopted for the Company. Inter-segment revenues have
been accounted for based on prices normally negotiated between the segments with reference to
the costs, market prices and business risks, within an overall optimization ohjective for the
Company. Revenue and expenses are identified with segments on the basis of their relationship to
the operating activities of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the Company as a
whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, will be included under "Unallocated/

Others".

Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting
period end. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current

events/a\nﬁ;é'é"ti_éiﬁ?.,\gctual results could differ from these estimates.
Ay SO
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Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed in the
paragraphs that follow.

(i) Useful Economic Lives and Impairment of Other Assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible asset is based on a
number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and other economic
factors {such as known technological advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE and intangibles at the end of each reporting date and
any changes could affect the depreciation rates prospectively.

The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment for possible impairment if there are
events or changes in circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be
recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to
significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's business plans and changes in regulatory
environment are taken into consideration.

(i)  Contingencies and Commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other
claims against the Company. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable
estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management's assessment of specific
circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best
estimate of the liability. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the

financial statements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the
Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company's financial
position or profitability.

{iii) Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Company's liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made
through independent actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss and in Other Comprehensive Income. Such valuation depend on
assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market.

{iv) Fair Value Measurements and Valuation Processes

Some of/.g@j@fﬁrﬁp{ly's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting

purposés?iﬁf estim\aﬁgg the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable
: i
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data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company engages third
party valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

{v) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets For Carried Forward Tax Losses and Unused Tax Credit
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the
prabability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in assessing the impact of any legal or
economic limits.

. Recent Accounting Developments
Effective from 1st April 2021, the Company has adopted the following new Standard and

amendments to certain Ind AS relevant to the Company:

i. Amendment to Ind AS 116 ‘Leases’ - COVID-19 related rent concessions
The amendment provides a practical expedient which permits a lease not to assess whether a
COVID-19 related rent concession is a lease modification. The Company had not applied the practical

expedient.

il. Amendment to Ind AS 1 and ind AS 8 — definition of ‘material’
The amendment is not intended to change the underlying ‘materiality’ concept rather it provides
broader guidance and make it easy to understand the meaning of ‘material’.

fii. Amendment to ind AS 10 and Ind AS 37 — material non adjusting event
The amendment requires an entity to disciose the nature and estimate of financial effect of a
material non-adjusting event after the reporting period. Ind AS 37 specifically requires such
disclosure of a non-adjusting material restructuring plan.

The above amendments do not have material impact on the Company.
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4 (iv} Right of Use Asset

The Company has adopted IND AS 116, Leases, and had applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on 1 April 2019 using the modified retrospective method

on the date of initial applications.

The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

{Rs. in crore)

Particufars ROU_ Land
Gross Carrying Value
As At 31 March 2019 .
Additions )
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 22.41
Sale/Deduction _
As At 31 March 2020 22.41
Additions -
Sale/Deduction _
As At 31 March 2021 22.41
Accumulated Depreciation
As At 31 March 2019 -
For the year 0.99
As At 31 March 2020 0.9
For the year 0.99
As At 31 March 2021 1.98
Net Boak Value
As At 31 March 2021 20.43
As At 31 March 2020 21.42
{Refer Note 3c for accounting policy on leases)
The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets Is Included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
As At 31 March | As At 31 March
{5) Non-Current [nvestments 2021 2020
Investments in Subsidiaries measured at Cost Face "(';‘:3 e 2?201- of Shzr]esf e
Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid up)
AXL Exploration (P) Ltd. 100.00 242,625 242,625 5.49 5.49
Anjaney Minerals Lid, 10.00 11,000,000 11,000,000 10.62 10.62
Salanpur Sinters (P) Ltd. 10.00 6,040,000 6,040,000 6.03 6.03
Maithan Ferrous (P) Ltd. 10.00 100,000 100,000 0.10 0.10
Investments measured through OCI (FVOCI)
Invastment in Unquoted Equity Shares (fully paid up)
Ideal Centre Services (P) Ltd. 10.00 1.500 1,600 - -
Investment in Quoted Equity Shares (fully paid up}
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd. 10.00 216,000 216,000 5.07 4.11
Share in Partnership Firm LLP
Belved Property LEP (Share 18.15%) - -
27.31 26.36
5.1 Aggregate Cost of Quoled Investments 5.88 5,88
Market Value of Quoted Investments 5.07 4,11
Aggregate Amount of Ungquoted Investments 22.24 22,24

“(Refer Note 44 for information about fair vaiue measurement and Note 42 for Credit risk and market rigk of investments)
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(Rs. in crore)
As At 31 March | As At 31 March
{6) Other Non-Current Financial Assets 2021 2020
Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits 32.53 32,53
Balance with banks held as margin money deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months
32.53 32.53
As At 31 March | As At 31 March
{7 Non-Current Tax Asset (Net) 2021 2020
Advance Tax (Net of Provisions) 6.87 6.11
6.87 6.11

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

(8) Other Non-Current Assets 2021 2020

Unsecured, Considered Good

Capital Advances 0.78 0.85
0.78 0.85

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

{9) Inventories 2021 2020
Raw Materials
- Ferro Alloys 220,62 157 .66
- Power Plant 0.05 0.05
-Raw Materials in Transit 58.44 70.70
Work - In - Progress 1.52 1.34
Finished Goods 32,56 30.74
Stock-in-Trade 20,08 2.38
Slag and Waste 6.08 5,55
Stores and Spares Parts 9.15 8.51
348.51 276.93
9.1 Inventories have been hypothecated as security against certain bank borrowings of the Company (Refer note 23).
{At lower of cost and net realisable value (Refer Note 3k for accounting policy on inventories)
As At 31 March | As At 31 March
(10)  Current Investments 2024 2020
No. of Units
Investments in Units of Mutual Funds - FVTPL 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Aditya Birla Suniife Arbitrage Fund 28,544,533.47 - 62.17 -
Axis Arbitrage Fund 16,656,074.00 - 2572 -
BNP Paribas Arbitrage Fund 31,626,108.26 - 41.08 -
ICIC! Prudential Mutual Fund 9,184,148.50 - 25.76 -
Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund Dividend 8,518,994.95 - 25.82 -
L & T Arbitrage Fund 44,923 543.67 - 70.01 -
Nippon Arbitrage Fund 69,328,171.17 - 151.32 -
Tata Arbitrage Fund 75,509,315.95 - 86.61 -
Face Value (Rs.) No. of Debentures
Manappuram Finance Limited SR 61 NCD 1,000,000 535.00 B 54.09 -
Manappuram Finance Limited SR PPMLNCD 1,000,000 450.00 - 45.00 -
Muthoot Finance Limited 1,000,000 1,000.00 - 100.00 -
IIFL. Wealth Finance Ltd - NCD 100,000 8,605.00 - 100.24 -
787.82 -
10.1  Aggregate Cost of Quoted Investments 773.70 -
787.82 -

Market Value of Quoted lnvestments
Agaregate Amount of Unquoted Investments

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

(11)  Trade Receivables 2021 2020

Unsecured, Considered Good

Trade Receivables 436.28 280.59
436.28 280.59

111 Trade Recevables have been hypothecaled as security against bank borrowings of the Company (Refer note 23).
Refer Note 42 for about credit risk of trade receivables.
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{Rs. in crore)

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

(12}  Cash and Cash Equivalents 2021 2020

Cash on Hand Q.15 0.14
Cheques on Hand 0.03 -
Balance with Banks - -

- In Current Accounts 16.02 32.71

- Debit Balances in Cash Credit Accounts 208 7.1

- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 585.00

18.26 625.08

(Refer Note 3p for accounting policy on cash and cash equivalents)
Notes: a) Cheques on hand are cleared subsequent to the year end.

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

{13}  Other Bank Balances {other than note 12 above) 2021 2020
Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months and upto 12 months 6.34 0.91
Bank Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months (as margin money) 0.07 10.04
Earmarked Unpaid Dividend Accounts 0.10 0.15

6.51 11.10

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

{14} Loans - Current 2021 2020

Unsecured, Considered Good

Advances to Subsidiary Company 1.07 1.78
1.07 1.78

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

(15}  Other Current Financial Assets 2021 2020
Insurance Claim Receivable - -
Financial Asset on Forward Contract 0.59 -
Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits 1.75 213
Staff Advance 0.23 0.25
Others - -
2.57 2.38

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

{16)  Other Current Assets 2021 2020
Unsecured, Considered Good
Advance for Raw Materials & Stores 18.07 27.23
Balances with Statutory/Govemment Authorities 11.71 5.01
Export Incentives Receivable 10.82 10.60
Income Tax Refundable 0.09 0.09
Prepaid Expenses 0.51 1.05
Others 2.32 6.1
43.52 50.09
Notes:

a) No advances are due by directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severall
firms or private companies in which any director is a partner , a director or member.

y of jointly with any other person. Further, no advances are due by




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(17) Share Capital (Rs. in crore)

As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020

Particulars Nos. Amount (Rs.) Nos. Amount (Rs.)

Authorised Share Capital ‘
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 80,000,000 80.00 80,000,000 80.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 29,111,550 29,11 29,111,550 29,11

a) Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Equity Shares

The Company has only one class of equity share having a face value of Rs. 10/- per share with one vote per equity share. The dividend proposed
by board of directors is subject to approvatl of the shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the
event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to feceive remaining assets of the Company, afier seitling off all
oulside liabilities. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

b} Shares held by Holding Company

As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
Namo of shareholders Nos. % of holding Nos, % of holding
Equity Shares
Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings (P) Ltd. 16,186,576 55.60% 16,186,576 55.60%
(Formerly known as Bhagwati Syndicate (P Ltd.)
Note:- Pursuant to merger of 19 companies with Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings (P) Ltd.(Formerly known as Bhagwati Syndicate (P} Ltd.) merger

order dated 3 December 2019, it has accumulated 55.60% shares of the Company. Consequently, Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings (P} Ltd.(Formerly
kriown as Bhagwati Syndicate (P) Ltd.} has become Holding Company with effect from the appointed date, i.e. 30 January 2018.

c} Details of shareholders helding more than 5% shares in the Company

As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
Name of shareholders Nos. % of holding Nos. % of holding
Ll\aia Kalyaneshwari Holdings (P) Ltd. 16,186,576 55.60% 16,186,576 55.60%
Formerly known as Bhagwati Syndicate (P) Ltd.)
{18} Other Equity
Particulars As at 315t March,2021| As at 315t March, 2020
Capital Reserve 1.70 1.70
Securities Premium 31.87 31.87
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 1,235.67 1,065.97
Add: Profit for the year 233.03 221.90
AddiLess: Other Comprehensive Income for the year 0.33 (0.09)

Less: Dividends paid incheding DDT - (42.11)

Closing Balance 1,469.03 1,235.67
1,502.60 1,269.24
Egquity Instruments Through OC!

Opening Balance (1.39) 0.40
Add/Less: Other Comprehensive Income for the year 0.67 {1.79)
Closing Balance (0.72) {1.39)

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve

Opening Balance 245 0.82
Less: Other Comprehensive Income for the year {2.45) 1.63
Closing Balance - 2.45

TOTAL 1,501.88 1,270.30
Capital Reserve

This reserve represents the difference between value of the net assets transferred and consideration paid for such assets in the course of
amalgamation and also relates to forfeiture of shares.

Secunties Premium
This reserve represents the premium on issue of shares and can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Retained Earnings
This reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and effects of remeasurement of defined benefit obligations. This reserve can be

utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Incoma
This reserve represents the cumulative gains {net of losses) arising on the revaluation of equity instruments measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income, net of tax. The same shall be transferred to retained earnings when those instruments are disposed off.

Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
This reserve representﬁhéej—c;&murative effective portion of changes in fair value of derivatives that are designated as Cash Flow Hedges. It may

Ty
be reclassified to@'cb }o&] or included in the carrying amount of the non-financial asset in accordance with the Company's accounting policy.




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(Rs. in crore}

I As At 31 March As At 31 March
(19) Lease Liabilities - Non-Current 2021 2020
Lease Liabilities 348 357
3.48 3.57
The movement in jease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2021 is as follows:
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Balance at the beginning 3.63 3.69
Adjustments - 0.01
Interest expense during the period 0.33 0.36
Payment of lease liabilities 0.41 0.43
Balance at the year end 3.55 3.63
Current 0.07 0.07
Non-Current 3.48 3.57

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

. . As At 31 March As At 31 March
(20} Non-Current Provisions 2021 2020
Provisions for Employee Benefits 2.80 2.79
2.80 2,79
20.1 Movement in Provisions
As At 31 March 2019 2.34
Provision utilised 0.19
Provision created 0.64
As At 31 March 2020 2.79
Provision utilised 0.05
Provision reversed 0.06
Provision created 0.12
2.80

As At 31 March 2021

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

(21) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 2021 2020
Deferrod Tax Liabilities

- Property, Plant and Equipment 30.24 30.97
- Fair Value Gain on Mutual Fund 247 -
Gross Deferred Tax Liabilities 32.71 30.97
Deferred Tax Assels

- Empioyee Benefits 1.10 1.10
- Fair Value Gain/Loss on Investment 0.10 0.39
Gross Deferred Tax Asset 1.20 1.49
Peferred Tax Liabilities / (Assets) (Net) 31.51 20.48

(22) Other Non-Current Liabilities

As At 31 March
2021

As At 31 March
2020

Deferred Government Grant

0.89

0.98

0.89

0.98

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

{23} Borrowings - Current 2021 2020
Working Capital Loan from Banks (Secured)
- Rupee Loan 30.44 6.77
- Foreign Currency Loan 14.70 -
T T T 45.14 6.77

23.1 Working c:gﬁital loan§. r@payable on demand are secured by first charge and hypothecation of raw materials,
worK in progress: finished ob(ds stores and consumables, receivables, bills, etc. These are further secured by

fi rst charge ) mqve ble. and~ immoveable property, plant and equipment both present and future of the
r1 @\Nv |
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MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Lunipany,

{Rs. in crore)

As At 31 March As At 31 March
(24) Trade Payables 2021 2020
Creditors 183.31 75.00
183.31 75,00

24.1 Trade payables are non-interest bearing and have an average term of two to three months.
24.2 There are no dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as at 31 March 2021. This information as required to be
disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the

extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company,

{25) Other Current Financial Liabilities

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

2021 2020

Current Maturities of Lease Liabilities 0.07 0.07
Financial Liability on Forward Contract - 5.57
Creditors for Capital Goods 0.03 -
Unclaimed Dividend* 0.1¢ 0.15
Other Liabilities

- Employee Dues 4.89 280

- Liability for Expenses 16.76 15.53

21.85 23.92

* There are no amount due for transfer to the Investors Education and Protection Fund at the year end.

{26) Provisions - Current

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

2021 2020
Provisions for Employee Benefits 1.48 1.60
1.48 1.60
{Refer Note 3m for accounting policy on retirement and other employee bencfits)
26.1 Movement in Provisions:
As At 31 March 2019 1.42
Provision utilised 1.31
Provision reversed 0.01
Provision created 1.50
As At 31 March 2020 1.60
Provision utilised 1.45
Provision reversed 0.01
Provision created 1.34
|As At 31 March 2021 1.48
. As At 31 March As At 31 March
(27) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 2021 2020
Provision for Tax (Net of Advance Tax) 14.85 5.18
14.85 5.18

As At 31 March

As At 31 March

(28) Other Current Liabilities 2021 2020

Current portion of Deferred Government Grant 0.09 0.09
Other Liabilities - -

- Statutory Dues 6.13 11.57

- Advance from Customer 11.03 3.39

- Others 51.69 58.25

68.94 73.30




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

({Rs. in crore)

Year Ended 31 Year Ended 31
(29) Revenue from Operations March 2021 March 2020
Sale of Products
- Manufactured Goods
- Ferro Alloys 1,447.99 1,579.24
- Wind Power 1.17 1.59
- Traded Goods
- Ferro Alloys 60.49 49,72
- Manganese Ore 50.00 76.75
- Others 18.17 21,25
Other Operaling Revenue
- Realisation of Slag and Waste 17.68 42.62
- Forex Fluctuation Gain 10.71 3345
- Tax Refund / Remission 4,08 3.82
- Export incentives 9.49 22.44
1,619.78 1,830.88
(Refer Note 3l for accounting policy on revenue recognition)
Year Ended 31 Year Ended 31
(30) Other Income March 2021 March 2020
Interest Income 8.44 4.97
Deferred Revenue Grant 0.09 0.09
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - 0.01
Gain on Investments 14.65 46.09
Dividend Received 0.19 13.95
Insurance Claim Received 0.33 0.79
Miscellaneous Receipts 0.02 0.02
23.72 66.92
. Year Ended 31 Year Ended 31
(31) Cost of Material Consumed March 2021 March 2020
Opening Stock 157.66 121.41
Add: Purchases 783.16 958.21
940.82 1,079.62
Less: Closing Stock 220,62 157.66
Raw Material Consumed 720.20 921.96
311 Raw material purchases are net of sale of unusable raw materials.
Year Ended 31 Year Ended 31
(32) Purchases of Stock In Trade March 2021 March 2020
Ferro Alloys 57.16 40.92
Manganese Ore 49.28 73.20
Others 16.60 2186
123.04 135.98
(33) Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Year Ended 31 Year Ended 31
Work in Progress March 2021 March 2020
Stock at the end of the year
Finished Goods 32.56 30.74
Work-In-Progress 1.52 1.34
Slag and Waste 6.08 5.55
40.16 3763
Stock at the beginning of the year
Finished Goods 3074 37.86
Work-In-Progress 1.34 1.76
Slag and Waste 5.55 6.86
37.63 46.48
(Increase) / Decrease in stock of
Finished Goods (1.82) 7.12
Work-In-Progress 0 (0.18) 042
Slag and Waste /f{,'- (0.53) 1.31
Total {Increase) / Decrease in lnzbehiories P (2.53) 8.85
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MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED

Notes to Standafone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Rs. in crore)

(34) Employee Benefits Expens

Year Ended 31 March

Year Ended 31 March

Salaries and Wages

Directors' Remuneration

Contributiocn to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expenses

2021 2020
2463 2545
14.76 15.28
0.90 1.00
0.34 0.61
40.63 42.34

Year Ended 31 March

Year Ended 31 March

{35) Power Cost 2021 2020
Raw Material Consumed in Power Plant - -
Electricity Charges 326.16 355.46
Electricity Duty 5.82 5.85
Operation & Maintenance of Power Plant - 0.07
331.98 361.38

(36) Finance Cost

Year Ended 31 March

Year Ended 31 March

Unwinding of Interest on Lease Liabilities
Interest on Borrowings

Interest on Statutory Dues

2021 2020
0.33 0.37
0.84 3.34
0.03 -
1.20 3.71

Note: On adoption of Ind AS 116 'Leases’, the Company has recognised Right of use of assets and created
lease obligation representing present value of future minimum lease payments. The unwinding of such

obligation is recognised as interest expense.

(37) Depreciation and Amortisal

Year Ended 31 March
2021

Year Ended 31 March
2020

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer NotL
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset (Refer Note 4(iv))
Amortisation on Intangible Assets (Refer Note 4(iii))

14.55 14.64
0.99 1.11
c.08 0.06

15.62 15.81

{Refer Note 3b,3c,3e for accounting policy on depreciation and amortisations)




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

{Rs. in crore)

Year Ended 31 March | Year Ended 31 March
{38) Other Expenses 2021 2020
Export Expenses 38.16 33.94
Stores and Packing Materials 9.89 12.58
Packing and Forwarding Expenses 8.95 9.98
Carriage Outward 5.02 8.07
Rebate and Discounts 4.46 7.08
Other Manufacturing Expenses 8.62 5.85
Brokerage and Commission 3.05 4.47
Bank Commission and Charges 1.99 2.18
Pollution Control Expenses 4,29 381
Service Tax and GST Expenses - 7.54
Repairs to Machinery 6.83 12.50
Repairs to Building 1.00 0.92
Repairs to Others 0.57 0.65
Rates and Taxes 1.12 0.82
Loss on Sale of Property Plant and Equipment 0.02 -
Professional Charges 1.11 1.33
CSR Expenses (Refer note 38.1} 6.53 6.67
Irrecoverable Balances and Debts Written Off - 0.01
Insurance Premium 1.14 0.77
Directors' Sitting Fees 0.04 0.05
Rent * 0.30 0.23
Demurrage Charges - 1.43
Auditors Remuneration
- Statutory Audit Fee 0.12 0.12
- Tax Audit Fee 0.02 0.01
- Other Services 0.04 0.03
- Reimbursement of Expenses - -
Loss due to Flood 0.09 -
Forex Fluctuation Loss 141 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 6.15 6.59
110.92 127.63

* Rental expense recorded for short-term leases and low value lease for the year ended 31 March 2021,

{
2

OIELN

TOMED
%f{/ \\ N
" <W <
| ))\ Vi ‘51“;
i e




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

38.1 Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities

(i) Details of CSR expenditure: (Rs. in crore)
Year Ended 31 March | Year Ended 31 March
Particulars 2021 2020
(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 6.53 6.42
{b) Amount spent during the year:
{i) Construction/acquisition of any asset 0.07 0.21
(i) On purposes - in cash 6.46 6.46
(ii} The various heads under which the CSR expenditure were incurred in cash is detailed as follows:
Relevant Clause of
Schedule VIl to the Description of CSR activities Year Ended 31 March | Year Ended 31 March
Act 2021 2020
Clause (i} & (il) |Promoting heaithcare including preventive healthcare and 0.15 0.25
promoting education
Clause {i) Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, Promoting 1.85 1.13
healthcare including preventive healthcare
Clause {ii) Promoting education, including special educaticn and 4.03 456
employment enhancing vocational training and livelihood
enhancement oroiects®
Clause (iii) Empowering Woman - 0.05
Clause (iv) Ensuring animal welfare and Environment Sustain 0.42 0.66
Clause {jii) Measures for Reducing Inequalities faced by Socially and 0.03 0.02
Economically Backward Groups.
Clause (v} Promoting Cultural Activities 0.05 -
6.53 6.67
* Contribution to related trust (BMA Foundation) amounting to Rs. 3.82 crore (31 March 2020 - Rs. 4.43 crore)
(39) Earnings Per Share (EPS) 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
i) Profit attributable to ordinary Equity Holder 233 222
if) Weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for 29,111,550 29,111,550
calculating Basic EPS
iii} Weighted average potential equity shares - -
iv) Total weighted average number of equity shares used as denominator for 29,111,550 29,111,550
calcuiating Diluted EPS
v} Basic Earnings Per Share [Rs.) 80.05 76.22
vi) Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) 80.05 76.22
vii} Face value Per Equity Share (Rs.} 10 10

(Refer Note 3s for accounting policy on earnings per share)




MAITHAN ALLOYS LIMITED ‘
Notes to Standalone Financiat Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

(40) Tax Expenses

(Rs. in crore)

o Year Ended 31 | Year Ended 31
40.1  Amount recognised in Profit or Loss March 2021 March 2020
Current Tax:
Income Tax for the year 67.85 55.45
Total Current Tax 67.85 55.45
Defarred Tax:
Qrigination and Reversal of Temporary Differences 1.56 1.79
Total Deferred Tax 1.56 1.79
Total Tax Expenses 69.41 57.24
. . Yeoar Ended 31 | Year Ended 31
40.2  Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income March 2021 March 2020
The Tax (Charge} / Credit arising on Income and Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive lncome is as follows:
Deferred Tax
On Iltems that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement Gains/{Losses) on Defined Benefit Plans {0.18) 0.05
Equity Instruments through OCI 0.29) 0.24
Total {0.47) 0.29
i I Year Ended 31 | Year Ended 31
40.3  Reconciliation of effective tax rate March 2021 March 2020
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Profit before tax 302.44 279.14
ncome tax expense calculated @ 34.944% (2019-20: 34.944%) 105.69 97.54
Expenses disallowed 0.01 -
Effect of tax relating fo expenses allowed on payment basis 0.17 (16.79)
Effect of income not taxable (38.05) (32.52)
Tax at differential rate {0.07) 579
Crigination and Reversal of Temporary Differences 1.56 1,78
Other differences 6.10 0.43
Tax expenses 69.41 57.24

404 The fax rate used for the year 2020-21 and 2019-20 reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 34.944% (30% + surcharge @ 12% and education cess @ 4%)
payable on taxable profits under the Incorne Tax Act, 1661, The effective tax rate is 22.95% (2010-20; 20.51%).

40.5 Movements in Deferred Tax (Liabllitles) / Assets

The Company has accrued significant amounts of deferred tax. Significant components of Deferred tax assels & (liabilities) recognized in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Fair Value of Employee
Particulars PPE Financial Benefits and Total
instrument Gthers
As At 31 March 2019 (28.74) {0.13) 0.90 (27.97)
(Charged) / credited to :

- Profitor Loss {2.23) 0.28 0.16 (1.79)
- Other Comprehensive income - 0.24 0.05 0.29
As At 31 March 2020 (30.97) 0.39 1.1 (29.48)

{Charged) / credited to :
1 - Profitor Loss 0.73 (2.47) 0,17 (1.56)
- Other Comprehensive Income - (0.29) {0.18) (0.47)
As At 31 March 2021 (30.24) (2.37) 1.10 {31.51)




Maithan Alloys Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

41. Employee Benefit Obligations

a) Defined Contributory Plans (Rs. in crore)
Yoar Ended 31 Year Ended 31

Particutars March 2021 Mareh 2020

‘The followings recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Caontribution to Employees Provident Fund 0.66 0.77

b) Defined Benefit Plans

Ay At 31 March 2021

As At 31 March 2020

Particulars
Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Leave Encashment 0.09 0.30 0.10 0.36
Gratuity 0.26 249 0.27 2.43

(Refer Note 3m for accounting policy on retirement and other employee benefits)

I. Leave Encashment

The liabilities for leave encashment are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render
the related service, They are therefore measured as the present value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the Projected Unit Credit Method, The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end
of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in Other Comprehensive tncome,

A. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

As At 31 March | As At 31 March
Particutars 2021 2020
Present Value of the Plan Liabilities 339 0.46
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Net Liabilities / {Assets) 0.39 0.46
B. Expenses recognized during the year

Year Ended 31 Year Ended 31
Particulars March 2021 March 2020
As At 1 April 0.46 0.41
Current Service Cost 0.14 0.15
Net Interest 0.03 0.03
et impact on Profit Beforo Tax 047 .18
Actuarlal (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-
- Financial Assumptions {0.01) 0.05
- Experience Adjustments (0.18) (0.08)
Net Galn recognised In Other Comprehensive Income (0,19} {0.03)
Curtailment Cost _ .
Benefits Paid {0.05) {0.10)
As At 31 March 0.39 0.46
C, Assumptions
Pringipal actuarial assumptions as at the Balance Sheet date:

As At 31 March | As At 31 March
Particulars 2021 2020
Discount Rate (%) 6.95% 7.65%
Attrition Rate (%) 1.00%, 1.00%
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 6.00%

D. Sensltivity
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:
Year Ended 31 March 2021 Year Ended 31 March 2020

Particulars

Change in Impact on DBQ'# | Impact on DBO if Change in impact on DBO i rate| impact on DBO if rate

rate | rate di i i

Discount Rate 0.50% 0.53 0.60 0.50% 0.51 0.58
Salary Escalation Rate 0.50% 060 0.53 0.50% 0.58 0.51

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

E. Maturity
The defined benefit obligations shall mature as follows:

As At 31 March | As At 31 March
Particutars 2021 2020
Year 1 0.09 0.10
Year 2 0.01 -
Year 3 0.01 0.01
Year 4 0.03 0.02
Year 5 0.02 0.04
Next 5 years 0.89 0.99

The weighted average duratior_;o%??rjr}eq benefit obligation is 11 years.
SO
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Maithan Alloys Limited
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

41. Employee Benefit Obligations (Cont..)
Il.  Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in india as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years
are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed praoportionately for

15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service,

A. Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet (Rs. in crore)
. As At 31 March | As At 31 March
Particulars 2021 2020
Present Value of the Plan Liabilities 275 2.70
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Net Liabilities 2.75 270
{Refer Note 3m for accounting policy on retirement and other employee benefits)
B. Expenses recognized during the year
. Year Ended 31 | Year Ended 31

Particulars March 2021 March 2020
*=~ At 1 April 270 215

.rent Service Cost 0.41 0.44
Plan Amendments : Vested portion at the end of period{past services) - -
Interest Expense/ Income 0.18 0.14
Net impact on Profit Before Tax 0.59 0.58
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss arising from changes in-
- Financial Assumptions (0.10) 0.29
- Experience Adjustments (0.22) {0.11}
Net Gain recognised in Other Comprehensive income (0.32) 0.18
Benefits Paid (0.22) {0.21)
As At 31 March 2.75 2,70

C. Assumptions
Principal actuarial assumptions as at the Balance Sheet date:

. As At 31 March | As At 31 March
Particulars 2021 2020
Discount Rate (%) 6.95% 7.70%
Attrition Rate (%} 1.00% 1.00%
Salary Escalation Rate 6.00% 5.00%

D. Sensitivity

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) to changes in the weighted key assumptions are:

Year Ended 31 March 2021 Year Ended 31 March 2620
Particulars Change n Impact on DBOif| Impact on DBO K Change in Impact ont DBO If rate|impact on DBOQ If rate
assumptlon rate increases rate decreases assumption increases decreases
Discount Rate 1.00% 2,60 2.92 1.00% 2.52 285
Salary Escalation Rate 1.00% 2.91 2.61 1.00% 2.86 2,55

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations as a result of reasonable changes

in key assumptions accurring at the end of the reporting period.

E. Maturity
The defined benefit cbligations shall mature as follows:

. As At 31 March | As At 31 March
Particulars 2021 2020

Year 1 0.27 0.28
Year 2 0.05 0.04
Year 3 0.12 0.07
Year 4 0.18 0.12
Year 5 0.27 0.21
Next 5 years 6.18 6.08

The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation is 11 years.




Maithan Alloys Ltd,
Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 34 March 2021

(42) Financial Risk Management
The Company has a system-based approach to risk management, anchored to policies & procedures and internal financial contrals aimed at ensuring early identification,
evaluation and management of key financial risks {such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk) that may arise as a consequence of its business operations as well as its

investing and financing activities.
Accordingly, the Company’s risk management framework has the objective of ensuring that such risks are managed within acceptable and approved risk parameters in a

disciplined and consistent manner and in compliance with applicable regulations. It also seeks to drive accountability in this regard.

The Company's financial liabllities includes Borrowings, Trade Payables and Other Financial Liabilities, The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's
operations. The Company's principal financial assets include Trade Receivables, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Financial Assets that are derived directly from its

operations.
Itis the Company's policy that derivatives are used exclusively for hedging purposes and not for trading or speculative purposes.
Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Market Risk - Price Risk Investments in equity securities Sensitivity analysis  |[Continuous monitoring of performance  of|
investments
Market Risk — Foreign Exchonge Future commercial transactions and recognised financial assets |Cash flow Projecting cash flows and censidering the forecast of|
& liabilities not denominated in indian rupee (INR) forecasting fluctuation in exchange rates
Sensitivity analysis
Market Risk — Interest Rate Borrowings at floating interest rates Sensitivity analysis  |Exposure to floating interest rate debt is only to the
extent of Working Capital requirement .
Credit Risk Trade receivables and other financial assets measured at Ageing analysis Diversification of customer base
amortised cost
Liquidity Risk Financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or Cash flow forecasts |Projecting cash flows and considering the level of
another financial asset, liquid assets necessary to meet the liabilities

The Board of Directors reviewed policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below:-
{a) Market Risk

(i) Commodity Price Risk
Alloy industry being cyclical in nature, realisations gets adversely affected during downturn. Higher input prices or higher production than the demand ultimately affects the

profitability. The Company has mitigated this risk by well integrated business model.

{ii} Price Risk )
Market price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, The Company is not an active
investor in equity markets; it continues to hold certain investments in equity for long term value accretion which are accordingly measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income. Accordingly, fair value fluctuations arising from market volatility is recognised in Other Comgrehensive Income.

The Company also invests in mutual fund schemes of leading fund houses. Such investments are susceptible to market price tisk of the underlying assets, whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or by factors affecting all simifar financial instruments traded in the market.

Sensitivity

The table below summarizes the impact of increases/decreases of the market prices of the Company’s investment: (Rs. in ¢rore)
Impact on profit before tax

Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020

Increase by 5% (2020: 5%)* 39.64 0.21

Decrease by 5% {2020; 5%)* (39.64) (0.21)

* Holding all other variobles constant

{1il) nterest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company’s exposure
to the risk of changes in the market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's borrowings obligations with floating interest rates. The borrowings of the Company are

principally denominated in indian Rupees linked to MCLR with floating rates of interest.
The Company Invests surplus funds in Short-Term Deposits and Mutual Funds, some of which generate a tax-free return, to achleve the Company’s goal of maintaining liquidity,

carrying manageable risk and achioving satisfactory returns.

The exposure of the Company’s Financial Liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:
As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020

Particulars

Rupee Borrowings (Floating Rate) 30.44 6.77
Foreign Currency Loan (Fixed Rate} 14.70 -
Total 45.14 6.77
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{42) Financial Risk Management (Cont...}
Sensltivity

Profit or loss i sensitive to higher/ lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates as below: {Rs. in crore}

Particulars Impact on Profit Before Tax

31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Interest expense rates — increase by 50 basis points (2020: 50 bps)* {0.15} (0.03)
interest expense rates — decrease by 50 basis points {2020: 50 bps)* 0.15 0.03

* Holding oll other variables constant

{iv) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure wifl fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to
the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates refates primarily to the Company's foreign currency denominated Borcowings, Creditors and Debtors. This foreign currency risk is
covered by using foreign exchange forward contracts.

Since the Company has both imports as well as exports {exports are more than imperts) the currency fluctuation risk is largely mitigated by matching the export inflows with
import outflows. Surplus exports are hedged using simple forward exchange contracts depending on the market conditions.

The hedge mechanisms are reviewed periodically to ensure that the sisk from fluctuating currency rates is appropriately managed. The following analysis is based on the gross
exposure as at the reporting date which could affect the Profit or Loss or Other Comprehensive Income. The exposure summarised below is mitigated by some of the derivative
contracts entered into by the Company as disclosed under the section on “Derivative financial instrurnents”.

The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the teporting period expressed in INR are as follows:~

Particulars As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
usb Euro usp Euro
Trade Receivables {in INR) 324.22 0.02 96,27
Trade Payables (in INR) 114.92 - 33.50
Foreign currency borrowings (in INR) 14.70 - - -
Net Exposure {In INR) 194,60 0.02 62.77 47.38

Foreign Currency Sensitivity
1% increase or decrease in foreign exchange rates will have no material impact on profit,

{v) Derivative Financlal instruments and Risk Management

The Company has entered into variety of foreign currency forward contracts to manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. These financial exposures are
managed in accordance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures.

The Company uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its exposures In foreign currency arising from firm commitments and highly probable forecast transactions. Forward
exchange contracts that were outstanding on respective reporting dates, expressed in INR:

Curren Cross Curren As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
Y id Buy Sell Buy Sell
S Dollar INR - 355,99 . 205.87
Euro INR - 35.07 - 102.10
The aforesaid hedges have a maturity of less than 1 year from the year end.

(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in finandial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only

dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Credit risk on
receivables is limited as almost all domestic sales are against advance payment or letters of credit (except sale made to PSU's) and export sales are on the basis of documents

against payment or letters of credit.

1} Financial Instruments and Deposits
For current investments, counterparty limits are in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any one counterparty. This, therefore, results in diversification of credit risk

for the Company's mutual fund investments.

With respect to the Company's investing activities, counter parties are shortfisted and exposure limits determined on the basis of their credit rating (by independent agencies),
financial statements and other relevant information. Taking into account the experience of the Company over time, the counter party risk attached to such assets is consfdered
to be insignificant.

None of the Company’s Cash and Cash Equivalents, inctuding Time Deposits with banks, are past due or impaired, Regarding Trade Receivables, Loans and Other Financial Assets
{both current and non-current), there were no indications as at 31 March 2020, that defaults in payment obligations will occur .

1) Trade Recelvables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control refating to customer credit risk management. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally carrying 30 days credit terms. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Company has no
concentration of credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed both economically and geographically, The ageing of trade receivables as of Balance Sheet date is given
below. The age analysis have been considered from the due date:
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(42) Financial Risk Management (Cont...) ) {Rs. in crore)
Particulars As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
Neither past due nor impaired 280.61 179.55
Past due but not impaired

Due less than 6 months 150.08 91.67
Due between 6-12 months 1.05 8,36
Due greater than 12 months 4.54 1.01
Total 436.28 280.59

Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company’s normal terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are determined on a
case to case basis with reference to the customer’s credit quality and prevailing market conditions. Receivables that are classified as ‘past due’ in the above tables are those that
have not been settled within the terms and conditions that have been agreed with that custamer. The Company based on past experiences does not expect any material loss on
its receivables and hence no allowance is deemed necessary on account of Expected Credit Loss.

The credit quality of the Company’s customers is monitored on an ongoing basis and assessed for impairment where indicators of such impairment exist. The Company uses
simplified approach for impairment of financlal assets. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to provide for impairment loss.
However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit loss Is used. The solvency of the debtor and their ability to repay the receivable is considered in
assessing receivables for impairment. Where receivables have been impaired, the Company actively seeks to recover the amounts in question and enforce compliance with
credit terms.

{c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are setted by delivering ¢ash or another financial

asset.
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed

credit facilities to meet obligations when due. Due to the nature of the underlying business, the Company maintains sufficient cash and liquid investments available to meet its
obligation.

Management monitoss rolling forecasts of the Company’s liquidity position {comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities below} and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows. The management also considers the cash flow projections and level of liquid assets necessary to meet these on a regular basis,

(1} Flnancing Arrangements
The Company had access to the following undrawn funding facilities at the end of the reporting period:

Particulars As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
Expiring within one year (bank overdraft and other facilities) 44.86 83.23
44.86 83.23

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice, Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank
loan facilities in INR may be drawn at any time,

The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening the financial position. The maturity profile of the Company’s
financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of Balance Sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The figures reflect the contractual
undiscounted cash obligation of the Company.

Particulars Less than 1 year Above 1 year and > 5 years Total
less than 5 years

As At 31 March 2021

Borrowings 45,14 - - 45.14
Lease Liabilities 0.41 2.05 5.49 7.95
Trade Payables 183.31 - - 183.31
Other Financial Liabilities ** 21.78 - - 21.78
Total 250.64 2.05 5.49 258.18
As At 31 March 2020

Borrowings 6.77 - - 6.77
Derivative Financial Liabilities 557 - - 5.57
Lease Liabilities 041 123 6.55 8.19
Trade Payables 75.00 - - 75.00
Other Financlal Liabilities ** 18.28 - - 18.28
Total 106.03 1.23 6.55 113.81

** Includes other non-current and current financial liabilities but excludes current maturities of non-current borrowings and derivatives and committed interest payments on
borrowings.
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(43) Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital
ratios in order to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from previous year.

The Company's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long-term and
short-term goals of the Company. The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-
term operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments.

The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and borrowings. The Company’s policy
is to use current and non-current borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total capital (equity plus net debt) .
The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares .

The Gearing Ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: (Rs. in crore}

Particulars AsAt31March2021 | As At31Mmarch 2020
Long-Term Borrowings including Lease Liabilities 348 3.57
Short-Term Borrowings and Current Maturities of Lease Liabilities 45.21 6.84
Total Borrowings {(a}) 48.69 10.41
Less:

Cash and Cash Equivalents 18.26 625.06
Current Investments 787.82 -
Total Cash (b) 806.08 625.06
Net Debt (c = a-b) {757.39) {614.65)
Total Equity (as per Balance Sheet) {d) 1,530,99 1,299.41
Total Capital (e=c +d) 773.60 684,76
Gearing Ratio (¢/e) {0.98) (0.90)
{b) Dividends Paid and Proposed

Particulars As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
(i) Final dividend {including DDT) paid for the year ended 31 March 2020 - 21.06
of Rs. Nil {31 March 2019 - Rs. 6.00) per fully paid share

{ii) Interim dividend (including DDT) paid for the year ended 31 March - 21.06
2027 of Rs. Nil (31 March 2020 - Rs. 6.00) per fully paid share

(iii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

The Board of directors have recommended dividend of Rs. 6.00 (31 1747 i
March 2020: Rs. Nil) per fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 20.00 each. This

proposed dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the

ensuing annual general meeting.

Notes:

a} Proposed dividends on equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a
liability.

b} In Union Budget 2020, taxability of dividend has been changed from Corporates to recipient of dividend therefore no
disclosure is made for the dividend distribution tax in respect of dividend proposed for the current year.
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(44) Disclosures on Financlal Instruments
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and {b) measured at

amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.
The details of significant accounting poficies, including the criteria for recogrition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of
each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements.

Categorles of Finandal Instruments {Rs. in crore}

Particulars Note As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
Financiat Assets
a) Measured at Amortised Cost *
i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 13.26 625,06
ii) Other Bank Bafances 13 6.51 11.10
iii} Trade Recelvables i1 436.28 280,59
iv) Other Financial Assets 6&15 34,51 34.91
Sub-Total 495,56 951.66
b) Measured at Falr Value through OC1 {FVOCI)
1} Investment in Quoted Equity Shares 5 5.07 411
ily Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares 5 - -
Sub-Total 3.07 4.11
c} Measured at Falr Value through Profitand Loss (FVTPL)
i} Investment in Mutual Fund 10 787.82 -
i} Investment in LLP Firm 5 - -
Sub-Total 787.82 .
d) Derlvatives Measured at Falr Value
1) Derivative Instruments 15 0.59 -
Sub-Total 0.59 -
Total financlal Assets 1,289.04 955.77
Financial UablHlities
a) Measured at Amortised Cost
i) Borrowings 23 45.14 6.77
%) Lease Liabilities 19&25 355 364
iif) Trade Payables 24 183.31 75.00
iv) Other Financial Liabilities 25 21.78 18.28
Sub-Total 253.78 103.69
b) Derlvatives Measured at #alr Value
) Derivative Instruments designated as Hedging Instruments 25 - 557
Sub-Total - 5.57
Total Financial Liabllitles 253.78 109.26

* Excludes Group Company investments Rs, 22.24 crore {P.Y, Rs, 22.24 crore } measured at cost (Refer note 5).

(i) Falr Value Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b} measured at
amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To pravide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company
has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards.

Level 1; Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted piices.
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of abservable market data and rely
as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrement is included in level 3.

(it} Valuation Methodology

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

» the fair value of investment in queted equity shares and mutual funds is measured at quated price or NAV,

+ the fair value of level 3 instruments Is valued using inputs based on infermation about market participants assumptians and other data that are available.
* the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date.

* All foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rate at reporting date,

(ili) Fair value of financial assets and liabllities measured at falr value - recurring falr value measurements

Particutars As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
Level 1 Level 3 tevell Level 3

Financial Assets
Investment in Equity Instruments 5,07 - 4,11 -
Investment in LLP - - - -
Financial Asset on Forward Contract 0.5 -
Total Financlal Assets 5.66 - 4.11 -

Particulars As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020

Level 1 level3 Level 1 Level 3
Financial Liabilities
Lease Liabilities - 3.55 - 3.64
Financial Liability on Forward Contract - - 5.57 -
Total Financlal Uabilitles - 3.55 5.57 3.64
(iv) Falr value of financlal assets and llabilities measured at amortised cost
As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
ritcul:

Particutars Carrying amount Falr value Carrylng amount Fair value
Financlal Liabilities
Borrowings 45.14 45.14 677 677
Total Financlal Liabilitles 45.14 45.14 6,77 6.77

The carrying amounts of all other financial assets and financial liabllities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due ta their short-term nature.

(v} Significant Estimates
The falr value of financtal instrurmnents that:are.not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are tpai\ﬁi;i}ﬂ_;_sré_di_-éﬂ’ ﬁ?‘ar\ket conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of the key assumptions used and the impact of changes to
these assumptions see (i) abovgf\f\‘l\;»’ : T

§

4
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(45) Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses
such claims and assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external tegal
counsel, wherever necessary. The Company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and
capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, If material. For potential losses that are
considered possible but not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a
liability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probable.

The following is a description of claims and assertions where a potential loss is possible, but not probable. The Company
believes that none of the contingencies described below would have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial
condition, results of operations or cash flow.

{a) Contingent Liabilities: {Rs. in crore)

ASAt31March | 1+ 31 March 2020

Particulars
2021

a} Claims against the Company/ disputed liabilities not
acknowledged as debt

- Excise duty and service tax demand 3.69 349
b) Letters of credit issued by banks and outstanding - 59.70
c) Bank Guarantees issued by banks and outstanding - 57.39
d) 8ill discounted backed by LC's - 13.66

The amounts shown above represent the possible estimates arrived at on the basis of available Information. The
uncertainties and timing of the cash flows are dependent on the outcome of different legal processes which have been
invoked by the Company or the claimants, as the case may be and, therefore, cannot be estimated accurately. The
Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of above contingent liabilities.

In the opinion of the management, no provision is considered necessary for the disputes mentioned above on the ground
that there are fair chances of successful outcome of the appeals.

(Refer Note 3r for accounting policy on contingent liability)
(b) Commitments:

Particulars As At:olzr'ar(:h As At 31 March 2020

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed )

on capital commitments

(45) B, The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 5 May 2021 have approved a Composite Scheme of
Arrangement (“Scheme”) amongst Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings Private Limited (“MKH” or “Demerged Company” or
“Transferor Company”) and Anjaney Land Assets Private Limited (“ALAPL” or “Resulting Company”) and Maithan Alloys
Limited (“MAL” or “Transferee Company” or “Company”} and their respective shareholders and creditors under the
provisions of Section 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Scheme provides for the demerger of the Real Estate and Ancillary Business of MKH into ALAPL (“Part il of the
Scheme”) and upon effectiveness of Part Il of the Scheme, amalgamation of MKH into MAL with the Appointed Date being

same as the Effective Date,

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to necessary statutory and regulatory approvals under applicable laws,
including the approval of concerned stock exchange(s), Securities and Exchange Board of india and the jurisdictional

National Company Law Tribunal.
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(46) Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily in the business of manufacturing of " Ferro Alloys “. Revenue from other activities is not material,

Accordingly, there are no reportable business segments as per Ind AS 108,
Additional information:

46.1 _ Geographical Information {Rs. in crore}
Year Ended 31 March Year Ended 31 March
1 |Revenue from External Custom:
rom Externa tomers 2021 2020
- Within India 653.57 795.04
- Qutside India ) 941.93 976.13
Total 1,595.50 1,771.17
2 _{Non-Current Assets As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
- Within India 200.86 21519
- Qutside India . -
Total 200.86 215.19
46.2 For product wise information refer note 29,
46.3 The Company is not reliant on revenue from transactions with any single external customer.
{47} Assets Pledged as Security
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for borrowings are:
Particulars As At 31 March 2021 As At 31 March 2020
First Charge
Current
Trade Receivables 436.28 280.59
Inventories 348.51 276.93
784.79 557.52
Non-Current
Property, Plant and Equipment 172,32 185.17
172.32 185.17
Total Assets Pledged as Security 957.11 742.69

(48) Related Party Disclosures
a) Name of the Related Parties and Description of Relationship:
I Holding Company
1 Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings (P} Ltd. (Formerly known as Bhagwati Syndicate (P) Ltd.)
B Subsidiary Companies
1 AXLExploration {P} Ltd.
2 Anjaney Minerals Ltd,
3 Salanpur Sinters (P} Ltd.
4 Maithan Ferrous (P} Ltd.
Il Key Managerial Personnet {KMP)

tn accordance with "Ind AS 24- "Related Party disclosures” and The Companles Act, 2013 following personnel are considered as

KMP
1 Mr.S. C Agarwalla Chairman and Managing Director
2 Mr, Subodh Agarwalla Whaote-time Director and Chief Executive Officer
3 Mr. Parasanta Chattopadyay Non-executive Director
IV Refatives of Key Managerial Personnel
1 Mr, Sudhanshu Agarwalla
V  Enterprises over which Key Managerial Personnel are able to exercise significant influence
1 BMA Foundation
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(48} Related Party Disclosures (Cont...}

b) Transactions during the year with Related Parties {Rs. in crore)
Subsidiarles Enterprises influenced by KMP Key Management Personnel and their
S, No. Types of Transactlons Relatives
2020-21 2019-20 020-11 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20
1 [Services Recelved
Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla - - - - 517 549
2 |Remuneration Pald
Mr. 5. C. Agarwalla - - - - 8.20 849
Mr. Subodh Agarwalla - - - - 6.56 6,79
3 |Sitting Fees
Mr. Parasanta Chattopadyay - - - - 0.00 0.01
4  [Purchase of Shares
Maithan Ferrous Pvt. Ltd, 0.0 - - . R
5 |C5R Expenses
BMA Foundation - - 382 4.43 - -
6 [Loans/ Advances given / [refund)
BMA Foundation - - - “ B -
Anjaney Minerals Ltd, {0.75} 0.75 - - - -
AXL Exploration (P) Ltd, 0.04 0.04 - - - -
7 |RentPatd
Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings (P) Ltd, 0.06 - - - - -
8  |Reimbursement of Expenses
BMA Foundation 0.00 - - - - .
"alance Quistanding :
K
Subsidlaries Enterprises influenced by KMP ey Management Parsonnel and thelr
relatives
1. No. Particulars
A
AsAL31March 2021 | As At31 March 2020 | A‘:‘:ZT""' hs ‘230122"“‘“ As At 31 March 2021 | As At 31 March 2020
1 |Remuneration Payable
Mr. 5. C. Agarwalla - - - - 169 0.50
Mr, Subodh Agarwalla - - - - 2 0.48
2 [Other Payables
Mr. Sudhanshu Agarwalla - - - - 077 038
3 |toansand Advances - Current )
AXL Exploration {P) Ltd, 1.07 1.03 - - - -
Anjaney Minerals Ltd, - 075 - - - -
d) Compensation to Key Management Personnel
Sl. No, |Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
1 (Short Term Employee Benefits 14.76 15.29
2 |Post Employment Benefits® - -
3 |Other Long Term Benefits* - -
14.76 15.29
* Post employment benefits and long term employee benefits are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation for the company as a whole and hence segregation is not available.
{49)  Entitles in Promoter/Promoter Group Holding 10% or More Shareholding
Name of the Parties:
1 MaKalyaneshwari Holdings {P) Ltd. (Formerly known as Bhagwati Syndicate (P) Ltd.)
2 Maithan Smelters (P) Ltd. {(Merged with Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings {P) Ltd. during the year 19-20)
3 H.S Consultancy (P) Ltd. (Merged with Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings (P) Ltd. during the year 19-20}
b) Transactions during the year with the Partles
Transactions Balances
S1. No. [Types of Transactions 202071 201920 31 March 2021 1 March 2020
1 |Dividend Pald
Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings (P) Ltd. {Formerly known as Bhagwati Syndicate (P) Ltd.} - 997 - -
Maithan Smelters (P} Ltd. B 3.24 - -
H. S. Consultancy (P} Ltd, - 1.96 - .
2 |Rent Pald
Ma Kalyaneshwari Holdings (P) Ltd. (Formerly known as Bhagwati Syndicate (P} Ltd.) 0.06 - - -

50) Due to outbreak of COVID 19 globally and in India, the Company's management has made business and financial tisks assessments, and believes that the impact is likely to be
short term in nature. The management does not see any medivm to long term risks in the company's ability to continue as going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when
they fall due. Due to the nature of the pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor developments to identify significant uncertainties relating to revenue in future period.

{51)  The previous year figures have been reclassified and regrouped where considered necessary to confirm to this year's presentations.

The accompanying notes 1 te 51 are an Integral part of the financial statements.
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